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DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS, 10 wyiT:

Distriet Cler®Fs Office:

BE IT REMEMBERED, thaton the third day of May, A. D. 1817,
and in the forty first year of the Independence of the United States of
America, Tuomas €. Cusuing, of the said district, has deposited in
this office the title of a book, the right whereof he claims as proprietor,
in the words following, to wit :

‘“ Repeort of the evidence at the trial of Levi and Laban Kenniston, be-
fore Hon, Samuel Putnam, on an indictment for the robbery of Major

Elijah P. Goodridge, December 19, 1816.”

In conformity to the Act of the €ongress of the United States, entitled,
¢¢ An act for the enceuragement of Jearning, by secaring the copies of
maps, charts, and books, to the authors and proprietors of such copies,
during the times therein meationed :” and also to an act, entitled, “*An act
supplementary to an act, entitled, An act for the encouragement of learn-
ing, by securing the copies of maps, charts, and bocks, to the authors and
proprietors of such copies during the times therein meationed ; and ex-

Eending the benefits thereof to the arts of dESigning’ gngrgviug and etch-
ing hisworical and other prints.” |

JOHN W. DAVIS,
| Clerk of the District of Massachusetiss:



TRIAL FOR THE ROBBERY, &c

INDICTMENT.

Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
ESSEX, ss.

Al the Supreme Fudicial Court of the Commonwealth

of Maflachufetts, begun and holden at Ipfwich,

- awithin and for faid County of Effex, on the fourth

Tuefday of April, in thetyear of our Lord one
thoufand eight bundred and [eventeen :

Tur Jurors for the faid Commonwealth upon
their eath prefent, that Levi KENNIsTON and LABan
KennisTON, both now refident in Ipiwich, in the faid
county of Eflex, labourers, and ReUBEXN Taner,
lately refident in Bofton, in the county of Suffolk,
labourer, on the aineteenth day of December, now laft
pait, at Newbury, in the faid county of Eflex, with
force and arms, and by force and violence, in and
upon one ELijan PuTNaM GoobrIDGE in the peace
of the faid Commonwealth then and there being, fe-
lonioufly did make an affault, and him the faid Elijah
Putnam Goodridge, in bodily fear and danger of his
life, then and there felonioufly did put; and fundry
bank-bills, to the amount of one thousand and eigh-
ty six dollars, and of the value of one thoufand and
eighty fix dollars, and fundry picces of gold coin,
called doubloons, of the value of four hundred and
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fifty dollars, and certain other pieces of gold coin,
called guineas, of the value of one hundred dollars,
of the goods and chattels of him the faid Elijah
Putnam Goodridge, from the perfon of him the
faid Elijah Putnam Goodridge, by force and violence,
then and there, felonioufly did fteal, rob, take, and
carry away, against the peace of faid Commonwealth,

and contrary to the form of the ftatute in {uch cafe
made and provided. '

A true bill, _
WILLIAM REED, Foreman.

DaN’L Davis, Solicitor General.

On Wednefday morning the two Kennifions were brought inte
Court, arraigned, and pleaded Noz Guilty. A motion was made

by Mr. Knapp, Counfel for Taber, that Taber might be tried
feverally, which was granted. The Court inquired when the
Prifoners would be ready for trial: Hon. Fofeph Bartlett, of
- Portfmouth, their Counfel, requefied the Trial might be poft-

poned a few days :---this was oppofed by the Solicitor General ¢
the Court faid the trial muft come on, when the Counfel for the
Government was ready, unlefs the Prifeners fhould fliew a {uffi-
‘cient legal canfe for pofiponement: none was fhewn...and the
Court afligned Thur{day for the trial.

Thurfday morning, 8 dclocky 4. u.

~ The Court opened, and before the Jury was impannelled the Solicitor
Geueral observed to the Court that this cause had excited much conver.
sation and feeling, especially in that part of the county in which the
Robbery was committed, and he wished the Jurers might be asked
whether any of them had formed an opimion in the case; the Court
then requesfed any of the Jurors who had made ap their minds to rise
and state ite=none rose-—the Solicitor General remarked, that the
Jurors from Newburyport and Newbury probably must have heard con-
siderable conversation on the subject, and moved they might be sworn (o
'make answer—they were sworn, and declared they had formed no epin-

ion. The Jury was then impanrelled,
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JURORS.

Otiver Emerson, of Methuen, Fore- l Jonathan Dodge, of Baverly,

man, . Ernest A. Ervin, of Salem,

james Aver; of Haverhill, ‘ Peter French, of Andover,
' @eorge Bridgen, of Marblehead, Daniel Friend, of Manchester,
Richard Chute, of Rowley, Samuel Giddings, of Ipswich, and
William Carr, of Newbury, Charles Greenleaf, of Newbury-
James Deunison, of Gloucester, pert.

The Solicitor General ( Davis) was Gounfel for the Commonmwealth,

Counfel for the Prifoncrsy Hon. Danisr Wepstsr and Samver L.
Kwvarey of Boflon. |

The Sokicitor General, after explaining the principles of law, and stat.
ing the case to the Jury, calléd the

Wirnesses ForR THE COMMONWEALTH.

Maj. Evijau P. Gooorince, of Baogor, teRified, the Robbery
was committed on the evesing of the 1gth of Dec. laft ; the pro-
perty he had about him confifted of Gold and Bank Notes: 1036
dollars in Bank Notes belonging te himfelf, & 66¢ dollars in Gold,
Doubloons, Guineas and Louisd’ors, and one piece of I'rench
gold with fome emblem of the French Republic, which he did
not underftand ; in addition, he had money fent by him to pav
over, from 3 to § hundred dollars, knows not the exaét amount ;
120 dollars was te be paid in Freeport, which he did ; fome was
to be paid at Newburyport, and 30 dollars he left in “the PoR-
Office at Dover te go to Rochefter.

He teftified, that on his journey up from Bangor he met with

nothing to excite alarm till he reached Alfred; had come by
way of Buxtown, on Saco river; reached the edge of Alfred
about dufk ; did not like to travel by night, and ftopped at the
firk decent houfe and inquired for accommodations; there a
a perfon came in, while his baggage was taking in, who faid he
was going into the country ; this man, he has fince had reafon
to fuppole, was Taber, but did not mark him particularly fo as
to recognize him again ; proceeded to Exeter without any thing
material to alarm him till he reached Exeter. At Exeter hLe
found the fleighing very bad, and came to the conclufion to leaye
his fleigh ‘there, and to performthe reft of the journey on horfe-
back; at Smith’s tavern he gave his trunk and valife to the
young man who was the bar-keeper, and afked him to be carefu!
of them till he fhould leave ; put up his horfe, and applied to
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Mr. Odlin, a faddler, far a faddle; Odlin inquired how long
witnefs would be gone, who an{wered about four weeks 3 Odlig
went to find a faddle ; witnefs was detained at Exeter abont two
hours. After dinner he requefted the barkeeper, a young man,
to give him a room where he might be alone, to {hifi his elothes 3
the true reafon was, to fee if his piltols were in order ; the young
man fhewed him into the room where he had dined ; while he
was loading his piftol,* the young man came in upon him, aad
faw him loading it ; witnefs then thought it of no ule to try te
keep it fecret that he was loading it ; the young man then faid
he had bullets that weuld fuit the piftel better, went for them,
and came back with a handful; twe or three perfons followed
him from the entry into the room, who did not appear to be in-
habitants of the houfe ; witnels then loaded his piftol and laid

it on his portmanteau, went out, fettled his bill ; the young man

then faid, * you have not paid fer the bullets ;” then paid for
them ; pearly at the fame time was told the horfe was ready s

when he went out he faw feveral perfons ftanding about, fome
of them [miling---thought their mirth arofe from his loading his
piftols ; foon after mounting, perceived his piftol pomnted roward
his leg, and fhifted it. He left Exeter jult before dark ; reached
Kenfisgton fome time after dark, and having mifled his
way, called at a houfe to inquire; ftopped there about
fifteen minutes; again miffed his way jult before he got to the
Bridge and took the road by Salifbury Meeting-houfe : prefently
after he paid his toll, eroffed the bridge and pafled on: two or
three minutes after he rofe the hill, he faw a man very near ; he
ruthed from the right hand fide of the road fuddenly : the horfe
{prung of his own accord, but was f{eized by the bridle on the
right fide, and the man came round then to the left, prefented a
p:ﬂo] as witnefs fuppofed, and in a loud and hoarfe voice de-
manded his money ;—told him he fhould have it ; then reached
for his piftol in his portmanteau ; cocked it before he took it out ;
then prefented it in his right hand in erder to fire; at the fame
time with his left tried to pufh away the other; from that
- moment he recolle@ed nothing till he found perfogs were drag.
ging him over the fence into the field ; then tried to cry out for
help; they endeavoured to prevent his crying out by choking
f#One piftol was left at Excter ia his trunk. )
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him and kicked him till he was exhaufted and made no further res
fikance; they fearched him; and he gave himfelf up entirely
to them, and they took what they pleafed ; they then turned
him over once or twice and left him : he theq cried out for help
a fecond time ; they returned, and again treated him with
great violence ; thinks there were three of them ; when they
left him, he was fenfelefs and had no recolle®ion: when he
revived he found he was badly wounded ; bruifed on his fide
and his hip fprained in the conteft; fhot through his left
hind [fhewed his hand and the glove to the Jury;] had
the glove on when fhot: the next thing he recolle&s diftinétly
was feeing Potter, the Stage-driver, at Pearfon’s tavern at the
Bridge; [in an{wer to one of the Jury, he faid he had no re-
colle@tion how he got to the houfe]; Potter had a pocket
book, portmanteau, and fome papers, and afked witnels if they
were his ; faid yes, and requefted him to keep them for him :
fome one there told him it was neceffary his hand f(hould be.
drefled immediately er it wonld be much worfe, and urged him

to go into a chamber to have it dreflfed : Dr. Carter drefled it:

about the time his hand was drefled, another perfon, Mr. May
from Salem, alked him if he wanted any ether aflitance ; defired
May to inform Mr. Page or Mr. Fowler of Danvers, and to re-
~ quelt them to come for him: he faw Mr. John Pearfon next
day, who atked him if he would go to his houfe in Newburyport,

and he confented ; there he was attended by Dr. Spofford, who,

having been confulted, thought he miglt be removed that day ;
and he remained there about four weeks; Doftor 5. attended
him conftantly : after the Do&or thought proper, he went to

Danvers, where his friends lived. After witnefs went to Danvers,
he was endeavouring to pick up every circumflance that mightbe
a clue to the Robbery ; there he had the firlt notice about Taber,
from John Page, who referred him to one M¢Kinftry for a more
particular defcription 3 met M‘Kinftry at Breed’s, in Lynn,
who particularly defcribed Taber, and told where he might be
found at Boflon, and advifed witnefs to arreft him by all means,
as he had made up his mind he was guilty. After being in Bofton
two or shree days, witnels went out to fird Taber; met with
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him there near Boyden’s, a little welt of the market, offering
fome hair combs to a perfon; judged it was he from the de-
(cription ; he had a mark, a fcar, under his eye ; inquired if his
name was Taber ; he faid yes; alked him to fiep into the houfe ;
he declined, and propofed going back into the yard ; there Ta-
ber faid—[ The Court directs witnefs not to flate what Taber
faid ; what he faid not being evidence againft others; but pri-
foner’s counfel confented.] Witnefs inquired of Taber whether
he was acquainted with the people about the bridge ; Taber faid
he could point out the Robbers, that he bad formed his opinion
who they were ; prefled him hard to difclofe ; he faid, if he
fhoald tell what he knew about ity it would be more than his
life was worth, thofe pcrions would kill him—before parting he
faid he would for three hundred dellars tell all he knew, but did

not fay how much that was; witnefs then went to Mr. French,
who was to furni(h the mouey, and confalted with him; had
‘agreed to meet Taber at a place appointed on the Monday fol-
lowing ; Taber did not keep his engagement, and avoided meet-
ing the witnefs ; ‘was there advifed by his friends to difguife him-
{elf, which he did in drefs of a failor, and went in the evening
with Capt. Silfbee and Mr. Jones to find Taber; after finding
him, and converfing with him alone, he confented to give the

names of thofe who had committed the robbery, for 400 dollars,
and trulted to the henour of the witnels to pay, if the information
fhould prove true ; witnefs then went to confult Silfbee and °
Jones; afterward went to Taber, and he gave the names of a
number of perfons who had been concerned in the robbery ; he
faid the prifoners were two of them, and mow had part of the
money, if they had not fpent it 3 told where they refided ; wit-
nefs thought bekt to begin the inveRigation with the prifoners, as
they were the lealt artful; went en to Danvers with Mr.
French ; informed Mr. Page, who confented to go and alilt in
fearching the Kenniltons ; French and witnefs then went on to
Ylampton, and remained concealed at Langmaid’s; fent for

‘Mr. John Pik_e, and employed him to go O Newmarket, and af-
certain whether the Kenniftons were at home ; after he returned,

got a warrant ; fent for Maj, Leavitt, @ good officer, and early
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1 the morping Went with hima and Mr. Towle, and arrelled the
Kenniftons at their honfe ; Mr. Upton immediately, poiating to
Laban, faid, * That one is guilty, keep your eye on him, don’t
let him elcape” ; witnefs thought neither of the Kenniltons was
the perfon who made the firlt attack on him ; after fecuring the
prifoners, proceeded to make a thorough fearch through the
wiole houfe ; found fome of the gold ; heard Maj. Leavitt fay
tre had found a counterfeit bill in a drawer in a room at the
north part of the houfe; witnefs had not been in that rocm be-
fore Maj. L. went in. ~ After finifhing the fearch, they went with
the prifoners to Maj. Coffin’s houle, about 3 miles; there Maj.
Leavitt took out of his pocket book a Ten Dollar Bolton Bill,
- which the Major had thought counterfeit ; on examining it, wit-
nafs faw the wi‘iting on the back of it, ¢ James Poor, Bangor,”
and knew the bill ; it was a good one ; there appeared to have
been an aitempt to erafe the writing, [Sol. Gen. then called
Maj. Leavitt, who, after being {worn, produced the bill, and faid
that was the bill he found in the drawer at the Kenniftons’.]
Jlfaj Gaadndga pmccedcd, and faid he had that bill with h:m‘
when he was robbed knew it by the words on the back of it,
in his own band writing ; received it about a week before he left
Bangor ; never faw it after he inclefed it with his other bills in a
piece of a cambric handkerchief till he faw it at Maj. Coffin’s.
The fearch at the Kenniltons’ contiaued a long time before any
thing, except the counterfeit bill, and fome parcels of filver
money, was found ; witnefs, happening to open a door, faw a
boy and girl climbing on a bed; they ftarted when they faw
him ; called the officer, and told him he had better fearch the
bed ; Maj. Coffin, Upton and Goodridge went in, faw a pair of
pantaloons hanging up over the bed, which the boy & gitl feemed
to be aiming at ; taok the pantaloons dewn, and found in them
fome filver and a doubloon without any paper on it} this gave
néw {pirits, and the {earch was continued more claf':ly ; Tome
were fearching in the cellar ; took down the loofe ftones of the
wall, dug in the fand at the bottom, turned over the potatoes,
and moved the barrels. Upmn fuddenly called, and faid, « Here,

I have found the whole hoard,” and fhewed a doubloon which
2
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he had fcratched up where a pork barrel had Rood ; Major
Leavitt picked up another : one of the doubloons had a wrapper
with witnefs’s fignres on it which he made at Bangor, [witnefs
fwears to the figures on the wrapper, as his own, that that doub-
loon, if the one found there, was his money, and he had never
feen it from the time of the robbery till he faw it at the Kennil-
tons’.] DBy that time the neighbours had colleéted, and helped
fearch the houfs critically : fearched it throughout : nothing
elfe material was found, except a quantity of filver dollars in 2
tin difh in a cafe of drawers, thinks from 26 to 46 but did not
count them=-—the prifoners faid the dollars were not theirs—f{ome
of the neighborus obferved that perhaps John, another brother,
who lived near, might bave part of the money—~John faid * you
may fearch, but you will find nothing but poverty,” or fome fuch
exprefliofi. The priloners were carried before amagiftrate. Some

time after, fome of the wrappers of the gold with the witnefs’s
fipures were feund at Mr. Pearfon’s, al: the bridge, i in the vanll‘.#
of the neceflary, fome of them very much defaced—-f’ome alfo

were found at New-York, with Jofeph Jackman, and a receipt
torn up fmall-~could identify one with his own name, and the
name of the receipter, Thomas Curtis, of Bolton, which he had
about him when robb:d-?-beforc he left Banger, put up his pa.
pers and took many receipts for the purpofe of {ettling with

people in Bofton—-had left the pieces of papers at N. York, with
the Police Oﬁicer-—-]ackman was one named to him by Taber'
and in confequence of that information, he had arrefted ]ackman.'

Maj. Goodridge then underwent a long and clofe crofs examina-
tion, in the courfe of which he tel’uﬁed, that he was at Alfred,
the day be did not exaly recolled, but i it was the night but one
before he got to Exeter, & muft have been the 1 7th-had very lit-
tle converlation with the perfon he faw there,fuppnfed to be Taber,
which was by fire light—had no talk with that perfon about the
property he had with him—he did converfe fome with the land-
Yord’s fon about his property——that he fappoqu he croffed the
bridge about eight o ’clock, or a listle after--and that he judges
of this by the time he left Exeter-- that he did not fee the perfons
who rifled the pgr,t_manteau--that Taber defcribed to him the
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perfons of the Kenniftons...that he le{t Bangor about noon, thinks
it was on Wednefday-..—that he loaded and drew both

piftols every day from the time he left Bangor till he got to
Exeter—this he did, that they might be in gébd'ozder—d:d

this near Alfred, on the road, no perfon being in fight—carried his
piftols in his fleigh—that he had often carried piftols before—had
beard of robberies in the eaftern country—of one that had
taken place a year or two before—that he did not recolled the
name of the perfon, but could relate the circumftances s the per-
fon was attacked, fhot the perfon who attacked him, who proved
to be his landlord :—that at' Alfred the landlord’s fon mentioned
“he was going to Kennebunk with a load of plank—talked about
timber for fhip-building, in couife of converfation he afked

where witnefs lived—the pérfbn be menttméﬂ was ﬁaﬁdmg bys
anid occafionally threw in a word—but there was no converfation

about the property with him——witnefs afked the landlord’s fon

to be careful of the pertmanteau, when he carried it out, or when

he brought it in—but did not recolle& which—afked him to be
careful, as if there was fomethmg that might break :—that ke

was molt apprehenfive of an attack in the eaftern country—that
hie was not armed from any particular apprehenfions—after
he got to Exeter felt fafe to ride by night :—That he did employ
a perfon, a Mr. Swinnerton, of Danvers, with his rod to fearch
the 1fland and under the Bridge for his money—that he did think
this mode of inquiry might lead to the truth :—that when he
was attacked, he received a blow on the back of his head—but
has no recolle®ion of it—had a bruife on his thigh, to which
poultices were applied feveral days—had an injury en his fide ;
recolleéts perfons jumping on him ; occafiened fpitting of blood,
but not immediately, now fometimes (pits blood ; does not fecl
the bruifes now ; ‘it took § or 6 weéeks to recruit him : that he
had fince {een fome of the money which he fuppofed to be his in
the poffefion of Deacon Dorr: that he was prefent when the
covers were found at Pearfon’s : thatin New-York he was prefent
with a Marfhal of the City, a Mr. Hoyt, when the wrappers were
found in Jackman’s room at New:York, on the foor, loofe with
fome old rubbilh and papers ; the fearch at N. York was on the
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t2th or 13th of this menth 3 was not able to go before on ac-
count of many avocations; had vifited his mother in New
Hampfhire ; that he engaged Mr. john Pearfon and his fon to
write to their friends at N. York to have Jackman watched ; that
he thinks he did not look at the Ten Dollar Bill, now produced,
till he got to Maj. Coffin’s houfe ; Maj. Leavitt had feen it, and
was going to leave it, till Upton faid they had better take it, a®
Keaniftons had no right to have counterfeit money, and (o they
took it : that he had been a long time collecting together the
money he had with him ; that he had laid afide the gold from
time to time when he received a piece; that he is a trader;
had not all the money long before ; took part from Mr. Lamfon
of Salem; received fome in pay for drafts; fome from Carr &
Garland ; and fome from Mr. Goodhue ; had taken a 100 dollar

N. York Bill of Mr. Smith, afterwafds found there was no fuch

bank, and returned it for other money ; had 5 doubloons of
Taylor & Brown ; many {mall fums he had collected from vari-

ous perfons at different times : that he carried his Bank Notes

in a piece of cambric handkerchief next to his brealt made falt
by a tape, except about 100 dollars in uncurrent bills which he
had in his pocket book, and his Gold was in a (hot bag in his
portmanteau ; and he had fome change in his pocket ; thinks
the money under his waiftcoat was taken at the ficft attack, as he
felt their hands fearching him,in the field ; the firlt he recollects,
after attempting to fire his piftol, is their draggiog him on the
field ; cried for help when crofling the fence; recolle@s their
firipping him or unbuttoning his wailtcoat; cannot fay now
whether they got the money from his bofom the firk or fecond
attack ; has no recolle&tion when his arm was wounded ; did not
examine his coat te fee if the arm was cut ; the firft "thing he
recolle&s diltin@ly was converfing with Porter at Pearfon’s ;
that he cannot undertake to fay he fully recognized Taber as the
perfon he faw at Alfred, and could not fwear it was; before he
found Taber, had made inquiries for him at public houfes and
cellars; he was not known, and did not hear he was in gaol ;
called at Boyden’s tavern, and in going out, faw a perfon thought
was Le, felling charcoal and combs ; when fpoken to he appearecd
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tobe agitated 5 and he at fir{t denied he knew any thing about
it 3 talked with him then half an hour, and agreed to have another
mecting. Witnefs agreed with Taber not to difcover or profecute
him, & bad not : Taber mentioned the names of thofe concerned,
{ Court told witnefs he need not declare the names of any who
bad not been arreflted.] Witnels faid Taber mentioned Eben-
ezer Pearfon, who had been apprehended. |

[The examication of Major Gond'ridg'e lasted 2 hours and 40 minutes.]

Wi, Potter is driver of the Eaftern Mail Stage ; came from
Portfmouth to Newburyport with the mail the evening of the
19th Dec.; foon aftet his arrival, the alarm eame about the rob-
bery at the bridge---went up there, faw Maj. G. lying down at

Pearfon’s ; knew him ; he opened his eyes, reached his hand to
witnefs and afked him to take care of him, faying he was amongft

robbers . witnefls told him he would be well taken care of, and

afked him if he Lad been robbed ; he fhewed his hand, and faid

he was robbed as he rofe the hill jult after he paffed the bridge ;

hc asked me to go and find his thlngh 3 Jackman, Brad(haw and
the witnefs took a lanthorn and went up; found his whip, valtfc,

portmanteau, and piftol ; a rail was down ; all his things were
firewed about ; about two rods from the rail, found his valife, a

bunch of bills about 36 dollars in a bandage, alfo his hat, and
letters ; after picking them up went back and told Goodridge we
had found his things ; he afked if we had found a memorandum
of his things: told him yes: he wilhed to have his memoran-
dum examined to find out what was mifling. Dr. Carter faid his
hand ought to be drefled : witnefs told him {o; it was much fwell-
ed ; he declined : witnefs then urged him to go up fairs: led him
up and placed him in a chair, and the Do&or dreffed his hand—
witnefs then tied up the papers in a handkerchief---afterwards the
people went again, found his watch, and a half eagle. = Witnels
tied thefe up with the other things, gave them to Pearfon, who
putthemin the drawer--—-Goodridge afked him to ﬂay till morn.
ing, but told him he could not, as he was obllged to go away
with he ftage at 5 o’clock. |

- Crofs examined by prifoners’ counfel ; faid he found the things

on the right hand of the road as you come up from the bridge. «
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people could be feen from the road in the field=—can’t fay whe.
ther the firaps of the portmanteau were cut or unbuckled——found
the whip and piftol by the (ide of the road, money was fcattered
round valife~found bunch of bullets: his hat was two or three feet
from the valife, and was beaten in and fome blood on it—-
found the wrappers of the gold, and tied them vp. When
witne(s firt faw Goodridge, he was in much diftrefs-..-—
lying on the floor-~fecemed to be a little out——was put to’t
for breath—-=he tried to raife himfelf, bat lay down again—
witnefs put his own head down—he then faid he was among

robbers—witnzsfs told him not to be uncaly—and that the
people were kind & attentive to him—thinks he afked witnefs to
go alone with a lanthorn to find his things--he mentioned his watch

—thinks he firt mentioned the watch after witnels returned :
witnefs pafled the bridge with the ﬂhge about ¢ o’clock,

______

20 rods from the place of the robbery-—before he got into ngh
fireet he paffed three men walking towards the bridge—the
horfes Rarted when he paflfed them—they were under the fence
an the road. |

Maj. Samucl F. Leavitt, a Deputy Sheriff in N.Hamplhire, tef-
tified, that on the 4th Feb. laft Mr. Langmaid called on him ardd
told him there were Rrangers at his tavern who withed to fee
witnefs—went there and was introduced to Major Goodridge ;
alfo found there Upton, Page and French—one of them gave
him a warrant to take the Kenniftons, and defired him to proceed
with them early next morning—told him ’Squire Pike would be
his pilot, as witnefs did not know their houfe—between 3 and 4
in the mormng WeE were on our Way‘—-ﬂ:opped at Ma_l Cofﬁn § e
Mr. Towle went and found they were at homc-—hc was unmllmg_
to po with us, fearing to get their ill will, but at laft agreed to
go & (hew which was their houfe-.-we firft arrefted Levi—he afked
what we wanted of him, told him~then afked him where Zebulon
was—he faid, you cannot want Zebulon, for he was
in Vermont when the robbery took place—.—~he then

turned round and pointed to Labarz, faid ¢ that is ths
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one that was with me at Newburyport the night of the robbery?*
—we fent to Lee for Zebulon, and when he came we told him
he was in the warrapt; he faid we could net want him, for he

was then in Vermont—Rruck out his name, & put in Laban’s, and
told him the reafon —we then put the prifoners under keepers,and
procecded to fearch the houfe—firft fearched the room where we:
then were, and fonnd nothing but fome counterfeit bills in the weft
room—L.evi {aid they were his—witnefs then fent round to have
the door of the bed room at the north welt corner of the houfe
. opened, as it was faltened infide~—girl opened it, and witnels
went into it, fearched a cafe of drawers, and fourd in

one of the draws a ten dollar bill rolled up as if to put into 2
thimble—took it vp, thought it a counterfeit, and threw it back

again—there found feveral fums of money~—~fearched every thing
except the pantaloons—went to fearch the cellar after the key

was brought, and took one of the brothers, thinks Zebulon, to

hold the candle——difcovered nothing, but near the door obferved
a barrel ftanding upon bits of brick—~was going to move it—
fonnd it heavy, two thirds full ef meat—put his hand and felt
u.ndé.r it and dtew out a bit of earthen—jult at that moment
witnels was called up by the others, who had found a doub.
loon in the pantaloons in a pocket book—Major Coffin had
it in his hand, and it contained 2 dollars befides the doube
loon—inquired whole the pocket book was—Levi and La-
ban faid it was their father’s—witnels afked them if their
father ufually kept it there—they anfwered they did not know—
then afked them if they knew he had gold—they anfwered they
didn’t know, and faid, “why not he have gold, as well as
- others ?”~inquired where the father was—they faid he had
gone to Stratham —The witnefs then requefled a Grict fearch
'°;--!?F.mad#-thlﬂkﬁ*hgaﬂicdhupm and two others to finilb the
fearch in the cellar, and they went—Witnefs went into the weflt
room—=there he foon heard Upton in the cellar halloo out that
they had found the money, and that the prifoners muft be kepe
fafe—~witnefls then went down and perceived the money was
found in the place where he had drawn out the piece of

earthen—Mr, Upton had the. meoney~thinks Maj. Goodridge was
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h.oldingf the candle—he faid, * that looks like my money.”
[ Witnels identifies the piece of gold—kept it all the time till trial
before the Juftice—then fealed it up—put it in the bank, and
received it again fealed as he left it.] Witnefs, after the gold was
found, went back to the rcom where he found the bill—{earched
more firi¢tly—{aw the Ten Dollar Bill again in the draw—a girl
in the bed room adéed as if fhe was fufpicious of our finding fome-
thing—Upton took up the bill which witnefs had before found —
witnefls faid he had feen it, and believed it was counterfeit —Upton
faid it was beflt to take it away, for it did not look well for them
to have counterfeit money--witnefs then put it in his pocket beok.

[ Witnefs exhibited the bill to the Jury, and identified it.] - None
of our party had been in the bed-room before witnefs went in the

firlt time—at the {econd time no perfon but Upton went in with
him—it was at firft faltened, and Goadridge could not have got

in——the girl that opened the door, a ftepmother’s daughter, was
17 or 18 years old—the girl firlt mentioned, a fifter of the Ken-

niftons, was older—fhe ftood by the door and watched nar-
rowly while witnefs fearched the drawers. The gold under
the barrel was not buried under the fand of the cellar, fo
but what the witnels could fee fome of the paper—the
fand was loofe and dry—nobody butone of the Kenniftons
was in the cellar when witnefs firlt (arted out the piece of earthen.
After finding the gold, witnefs preffled the Kenniftons to con-
fefs, and Maj. Goodridge offered to indemnify them —they con-
feffed nothing—appeared agitated—Levi {fweat profufely, tho’
it was a cold day, and Laban looked guilty, his countenance fell,
and he looked pale. On crofs examination, witnefs faid the

pocket book and the money were found in different ro&ms,s-ltad-
ing from one to the other. . |

Fohn Upton, jun. (a Deputy Sheriff, of Danvers) tcﬂ:ﬁcd he
was requefted by Maj. G, to go in purfuit of the robbers—went
to Kenniltons’ to fearch—during the fearch, a girl helped to take
the things from a chet—Laban was looking in at the door of
the room where the bill was found=—he was obferved to beckon

~ with his head to the girl, as if hinting to her to do fomething— -

fome one, thinks “twas Maj. G. foon after faid, the girl is putting
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fomething into the pantaloons—witnefs took down the panta.
loons, found a pocket book, told them it fclthca?y-—tilen handed
it to Maj. Coffin—found one doubloon in it—Maj. Leavitt was
then called for—afterwards went into the cellar, with a candle,
~ to fearch ~had an old fhovel and a piece of Rick about 18 inches
Tong—got on his knees fearching under the barrels—fearched
there fome time —Rriking with the Qick under the barrels, knock-
ed out a piece of earthen platter, and a piece of gold—called
‘out to Maj. Leavitt to come down and to fecure the prifoners,
faying, I have found the hoard”—he came down—afterward
fearched the bed-room with Maj. Leavitt, and, he thinks, with
Maj. Goodridge —faw and took out the ten dollar bill rolled up
in a wad—fuppofed it counterfeit—gave it to Maj. Leavitt—
Laban fecemed unealy when we went into the bed.room at firft—
M2zj. Leavitt faid he had feen the bill an hour before—witnefs
told him he had better take it.

On crofs examination, Upton thinks Maj. Goodridge was down
cellar when he found the gold—thc cellar is under the welt end
of the houfe, perhaps 10 feet wide and 20 long, where meat bar-
rel was, with a partition : witnefs Began to fea_rch on front fide;
Maj.G.was taking the fones out of the wall at the oppofite part of
the cellar, mever faw him go acrofs the cellar, and never faw any
perfon near the barrel before himfelf : thinks he was the firlt that
went to the barrel ; perhaps he was in the cellar an bour. The
fun was about two hours high in the morning whea they began
to fearch ; was there moft of the day ; canaot tell what hour
it was when they found the gold; witnefs faw a parce! of money
ina chc&, {pecie dollars by

May. Leavirr, called apain, queftioned by the Court, faid,
o | was ﬂ*c firkt thar went into the cellar,with Zebulon, 1 think ;
“the i mner cellar was then locked, and I fent one of the family for

“the key 5 the meat barrel was in the inner cellar ; Major Good-

‘ridge had not been there before.” Witnefs faw dollars in a box,
10 or 12, might have béen more or lefs, did not count them .

th*‘-Y {aid thefe were their mother-in law’s ; Gaodrldge dld not
“claim them, and fol paid no attgntmn to them furlhcr . wWe
found money in sine different places:  witnels faid no perfon

3

-
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could have had accels to the room where the bill was found be-
fore himfeif.

My. Upton again---faid he faw 10 or 1z dollars in a chelt.
Goodridge mentioned he had not loft fo much, and witnels put
them in again and left them.

Danier Corrin  went to Kennilton’s at the requelt of Major
Goodridge. Laban and Levi were arrelted. Witnels was re-
quefled 1o go and arrelt Zebulon, who was a mile or a mile and
hait of. Went and brought him to the houfe. During the
fearch in the welt room went in, finding nothing went out again.
Recolleéts Major Goodridge calling Upton, and {omething being
faid about a girl, and pair of pantaloons being hung up at the
back fide of the bed. The girl came from the dire&ion of the
bed, and went out of the bed rcom as we entered. Upton went
into the bed room firlk after the girl came out. Does not know

that Goodridge or any of our party bad been there. Maj. L'éavitt
‘was the firft that entered after we arrived at the houfe. Upton
found the pocket book, examined it, took outthe doubloon:.-

~afked whofe pocket book it was; they faid their father’s and his
pantaloons, | .
. Maj. Leavirr called by the Court again. ¢ I am fure
I was the firft that went into the bed room where the pantaloon$
were. I found the bill before Major Goodridge had been in the
room-=no peifon could have placed the bill there before I found
it-~I was up Rairs when the pocket book was found—-the bill
was rolled up--1 did not mention to any one in the houfe
1 had feen the bill, till Upton found it; and then faid I had
feen it=—T have no recolle@ion Goodridge faw it at Kennilton’s
nor till we got to Maj. Coffin’s ; I fuppofed it to be a counter-
feit bill-=-noticed writing on the back but did not read it---tho’t
it counterfeit from the compleétion of the bill, and its being faid
about that tinfe there was much counterfeit money of the Bolton
banks in eirculation——this was of a Bofton bank ; the firlt time
1 found the bill, I rolled it up again haﬁily as it was before and
threw it back.” :

Maj. Ceffiny again--Upton came mth thc pocket book and faid
there appears to be fome heft hcrc. found in it a doubloon,
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Garover Towvre-..aflifted in the fearch ; did cot take an ae.
tive part till the money was found. He had a cenverfation with
Levi; told bum he {weat very much, he faid it {tarted him to fee
fo many people there, They denied the charge. i

Joun Pike---Upton ealled him and afked him to go to Lang-
maid’s---there found Goodridge, I'rench and Page.--was requeited
tu lind out if the Kenniflons were at home-- found they were----
went with Geodridge, l.eavitt, Upten, French, and Page---had
the care of the prifoners.--heard Upton fing out he had found
the hoard and to take care of the prifopers---they denied any
knowledge of the robbery :---Levi faid his father was a preity
fly man, and may be he had put the money there---Laban faid
his father had married a pretty rich woman, and he rather con-
cluded {he might have brought the money there---when it was
{aid the money was found, L.evi fweat very much, and Laban
turned of a very pale countenance immediately. After they had
been examined at MNewburyport and were on the way to Salem
gaol, Levi faid to witnefs, ¢ I wifh you would talk with Laban,
‘“ and if he will tell what he knows about it, I {kall be clear.”

~ Levi Turrre---was pafling with his team by the houfe dur-
ing the fearch.-.afked Levi if he knew any thing about it, and
{aid Le had better tell : [Court interrupted the witnefs, and faid
no confeiflions could be admitted that were made under promifes
of favour. The Sol. General (aid, what he expected to prove by
this witnels was, that Levi {aid be did knpw but would net tell

The Judge faid the witnefs muft not go on.]

Samuer R, Carpwery, of Newburpport-—faw Levi the after.
noon of the robbery.--he came to the tavern of the witnefs’ fa-
ther to put up his horfe—~went away and returned with the other
about dark---they afked if they could have lodging and what
time we fhut up---told them about 10.--faid they were going to
take a walk---afterward witnefs went out for a pail of water---and

faw them in converfation with another man--- th:i was about 7
o’clock. Next morping saw the two Kenniltons in the ftable..-

nobody clﬁ: was there- --they afked if the horfe had been watered

they unhafped a door and went down under the Rable...faw
them through a hole in a board---about an hour after, the oldeft
came into the hounfe-..at breakfaft there was much talk about the
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robbery. Levi faid “well I am glad I want there,” and the
fweat ftarted out under his eye.--asked them where they had
ftaid the night before--they faid at Mr. Titcomb’s cellar---thot
they looked guilty---and witnefs aud his father {poke about 1t af-
ter they had gone out of the room-.-did not chargc them with
the robbery at the houfe.

Ephraim Titcamb (keeper of a cellar in Newburyport) knows
the Kenniltons, {aw them the day before the robbery; Laban
then had no monéy; he had come from gaol a few days before ;
he owed witnels for board at his cellar, and had left his buadle
for fecurity, till he fiould pay ; Levi the day before came, and
had a turkey with him ; he faid he could not pay his brother’s
bill, as he had no money ; the evening of the robbery they were
at his cellar ; were in and out, and went away not far from 7,
after fupper, & were gone till paft 10 o’clock, or about that time ;

they went out together with one M‘Intire and returned with
him ; next mrmmg after the robbery, witnefs told Levi his

brother could not go away till witnefs was paid ; he told witnéls
to take the turkey ; he then took out a handfome new bill of the
Newburyport Bank, thinksa 2 or 3 dollar bill, & witnefs took out
what Laban owed. * _

On crofs examination, Tiicomb teltified, that Mr. Caldwell called
on him the next day to inquire about the Kenniftons and what
time they returned ; told Caldwell it was 10 0’clock or after ; and
we thought they were acceffary to the robbery; Levi was
then in the ceilar at the other fide: he overheard us, and came
and wanted to know if we fufpeéted him : told him we did : he
faid, *1've heard fo before.” Witnels went to Mr. john Pear-
fon’s, and told him he fulpedted the Kenniflons: did not tell
Goodridge fo, he could not then be fpoke with. s

Maj. Geodridge, called again——thinks from the fize and appear-
ance of Taber that he was the perﬁm that fe:ﬁﬂ'the bridle of
his horfe. .

Court adjourned at 2--sand apmed again at 3 p.u.

- Mr. Knapp Rated the grounds of the Pﬂfoners defence, and
called their witneffes.

Mr. Webfter moved that Talcr be fworn as witnefs. Sol. |
General objeéts, that w’h‘tﬁ ‘perfons are ndicted Jomtly, and
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fever in their pleas, they cannot be witnefles: fo in Phillips apd
M:Caun. Court thinks Taber cannot be admitted : offers to
referve point.

WiTNESSES FOR THE PRISONERS.

Dr. Msfes Carter, on the night of the 19th Dec. was fent for
to Mi. Pearfon’s to fee a man who was faid to be wounded :
went there, and faw Major “Guttridge” walking the room :
talked incoherently, and appeared deranged: got him to unco-
ver his hand : it looked as if it had been fhot through : he infilt-
ed on going to the place where he had been robbed : fet out,
and was brought back and laid on the floor—~—when he fpoke,
witnefs tried his pulfe—it was a healthy pulfe, as good as any
man’s—-afked him if he would have his hand dreffed——he went

up Rairs—and witnefs drefled his hand—pafled the probe through
his hand feveral times.--the hole appeared to be made by a fhot

or fomething elfe-—he continued apparently in a deranged flate
through the night, and talked wildiy---put him to bed, and watch-
ed with him-..examined his body all over, and found no wound
of ary kind except a {cratch on his arm...he complained of ex-
c¢ruciating pain in his fide, and in the back of his head...eom-
plained of a violent biow on the back of his head--.the pupils of
his eyes were at times a little dilated. Witnefs was there when
Potter arrived---they knew each other---at times he appeared ra-
ticnal---he related the circumitances of the robbery, as bere, ex-
cept a few trifling variations---faid he fired his piftol, and it went
off at the fame time with the other---and that fomebody fat on
his face, and took his wateh and bofom pin. Witne{s examined
under his fhirt---don’t recolleé particularly about his hip, bat
fatisfied himfelf there was no particular injury.-.thinks a fudden
jar of the brain may produce great pain when no external injury
appears. B | |

" Docr. IsrasL Bavrcn...was prefent with Dr. Carter--the pa.
tient was talking incoherently-.-Dr. Carter gaiffe witnefs a deferip.
tion of the cafe--during this the patient was lying down-—-& witne(s
oblerved whenever he looked at the patient, the patient lookeg
away and turned his eyes---proceeded to exaniine the patient...he
complained of forenefs in his fide and head.--law no wounds-.-the
pupils of his eyes were dilated a little---thought it might be owing_
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to the darknels of the room..tho’the was not dcranged,but playing
the crazy man --once the patient called for Jerry Balch, they

to!ld him witnefs was Jerry Balch--looked at witnefs and Lie faid he
was not Jerry Balch---Goodridge was a bede-afterwards wrtnets
pulled off his (hoes,walked foftjy up Rairs,Jocked into the chamber
of the patient, *“faw him raife himlelf on his polteriors; he placed
his earlocks and forelock in order, threw ont his right arm,
hauked, expectorated, and fpit in the fire:”’ before that, he
faid he could not move himfelf in bed.-.-.-foon after, he 1e-
peated the (ame motions--when he heard 2 noilc at the bottom
of the ftairs as if fomebody was coming, he laid down again,
covered himfelf up, and began to talk incoherently-.-witpels did
not fee him {pit blood : when bLe looked through the door, it was
half open.

Dr. Ricuarp S. Srorrorp, of Newburyport, was called in
Daxt morning at Mr. Pearfon’s---faw Gaodridgc a bed -he feem-

.....

qutckcr and hardcr than it ought to be- -thcre was no external.
‘#njury on his head, no tumelaction of the integuments.--witnefs

thought it might be nervous irritation-.-took more  blood from
him, and he afterwards appeared more calm and rational---that
day he was carried to Mr. John Pearfon’s about 3 o’clock---he
fainted on the way from the bridge to Mr. Joha Pearfon’s----he
was rational through the day and following night, and. the next
day till 3 o’clock.--he then appeared delirious---witnels gave him
medicine---he got better gradually, and was never delirious after
that-..underfRood Maj. Goodridge he recolleéted nothing after the
fecond attack till Dr, Carter was drelling his band---no blood

was fctiled round his neck.--witnefs thinks a man might be
choaked by a hand or handkerchief without canfing any dicolor-

ation of the fkin---he complained for feveral days of great pain
in his head and fide..-firt faw the wound in his hand on Sunday
—the hand appeared to be perforated by a ball, which pafled
perpandlcularly to the plane of the hand—entered on the infide
of the hand .--a powder mark was on infide of cuff of furtout ;
there was a fcratch on the arm, and faw the [artout, which had
pu&mres correfpoud:ng to it-- --§ or 6 hoies in his coat, but one
fcmch in r.he arm :--the effe& of the medicine gwen by the wit.
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pefs was very immediate...gave f{ulphuric ether--.carnot fay He
ever knew it operate more rapidly :---he frequently afked when
he could be removed to Danvers :---witnefls thought he might
have gone in about a week : --he did not go for feveral days after
witnefs told him it would do :..-after he had been to Danvers,
witnels told him his reputation was fuffering :---did not know
whether this was hefore or after Maj. G. had arrefted any one.

DR, S. ¢rofi examined.--faid he adminifiered nothing to Major
G. which he did not thiok his cafe reqaired. His brother phy#-
€1ans at the bridge did not fuggeft they thought Maj. Goodridge
was fthamming madnefs. Did not fee him raife blood at the
time of the robbery ; he faid he had raifed blpod in the Difkri&
ef Maine.

Evias Jackman.--the night of the robbery went to bed before
9 o’clock. Heard the ftage pafs. In abeut 20 minutes heard

knocking. Mr, Pearfon wanted witnels to get up and go to his
houfe. Drefied himfelf and went there. Saw Pearfon between
the houfe and the toll houfe with a lanthorn, leading along Good-
ndge, who had no hat on.  Witnefs faid, * friend, what’s the
matter?”--.Goodridge faid ** You’ve robbed me”--he faid he had
been robbed of 170e dollars~-he (aid ¢ if Francis Carr was here
I thould not have come off {0”..-he fpoke of a letter and’ money
i it—witnels tried to take the glove off his hand---finding it
difficult, called for a pair of fciffors---a woman brought them-..
he afked if witnels wanted to kill him with the fciffors---told him,
No. He took the {ciffors to cut the glove off, but could not, his
hand fhook fo—witnefs then cut it off---..he called every one a
robber, and atked witaefs how he could live among fuch robbers;
afterward we took a lanthorn, put Dr. Carter’s cloak and hat
on him, and he went with us ¢ very corre@ly” up to the top of
the hill ; there he feemed to agger and to be falling, he [aid
““take hold of me ;” he would have fell, if the witnefs and Mr,
Varnum had not taken hold of him; Mr. Varoum thought Le
was dead ; witnefs tried to open his mouth, but could ot : s we
‘took him, and as he was not a very heavy maa, we carried him
back ; after carrying him 8 or 10 rods, ke cried out for us te
take a piftol and blow him through, and not drag him along

there : camed him back ; Dr. Carter belped get him into the
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houfe : witnefs afked Dr. Carter to examine him agaln, as wit.
nefs thought he had more wounds than had been found: Dr.
Carter faid * his pulfe is as good as yours, and I don’t think he
is dying” : afterward heard Goodridge talk about the robbery ;
he faid a man reined his horfe, he took his piftol and fired it, and
the other went off a little fir(t, and his horfe Rarted or he thould
have blown him through.

" Crefs examined—witne(s did not think Maj. Goodridge was in

his right mind ; next day witnefs afked him if he knew him ; he
anfwered that he believed the witnefs to be the man who inquir-
ed about Mr. Coombs of Bangor.
- Joun Jackman—went to the ground with Potter, Pike, Var-
num, and others, with three lanthorns; found a piftol in the
road; one faw drops of blood at the gap in the fence; found a
pocket book under the fence, open, infide of the field; about a
rod further a bundle of papers ; the valife ; a bunch of bullets;
a knife open ; and his hat on the ground ; the bullets as if laid
down with the hand ; we went back to the bridge, and Potter
carried the things to Maj. Goodridge ; he faid they were his’
we went again and tried to find kis horfe ; Pike found a 3 dol-
lar bill ; could not find the horfe; witnefs picked up a piece of
gold ; his watch foug under the fence ; found another penknife,
fmaller ; found the portmanteau by the papers ; it was more of
the bag-form than like a valife ; Goodridge owned all the arti-
eles ; one of the knives was two bladed, the fmall blade open ;
one fide of the hat was knocked in and had fome drops of blood
on it and blood on the whip.

Esexr. Pearson, jun —Two wagons pafled the bridge 5
or 6 minutes after Maj. Goodridge paffed; heard nothing more
for an hour or an hour and a quarter; the night was cold and
cloudy, and witnefs went iato the houfe ; Goodridge paffed a
Jivtle-before 9. When Goodridge came back to the houle, he
rufked in and faid “You're the damned robber,” he was ip
‘great agitation.. When the people went after his things,he afked
them in particular to look for his watch. The wagons Ropped
about fifteen mmun:s.

Maj. 8am’s Suaw—Rarted from Hampton with a b‘aggage
‘wagon about 6 o’clock ; was about three hours going to the
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bridge ; faw Pearfon, called for a pye, and eat it ; afked Peat.
fon what o’clock it was ; he faid about eight, but fent the giri o
look, and fhe faid it wanted 8 minutes of 9 ; when went to the
door, the bell was ringing ; very dark, and could not walk by
the fide of our horfes ; the Rtage paffed us on the top of the hill
before they got to High-fireet, the other wagoner faid “We've
got company,” looked round and faw a horfe following the team i
it followed to the ftable; it was about 10 when we got to Gil.
man’s ; went to bed ; about 12 Gilman came and told ef the
robbery ; witnefs then mentioned the horfe.

Joun Jackman--again—the neareft houfe to the robbery is
David Jackman’s, about 40 rods from the bridge ; there are
four houfes, all inhabited, between the place of the robbery and
Pearfen’s at the bridge,

Esen’r Pearson—faid he knew nothing more than his fon
had juft told—{aid that Goodridge had arrefled him twice for this
robbery, and had fearched his houfe and the toll-houle—they
fearched with rods abeut two hours, * and they might as well
fearched the graves as fearched me for it’’; witnefs {2id he felt
much agitated and dilagreeable ; {fome money was afterwards
found by a woman, Miriam Smith ; witnefs did net aflift them
in fearching his houfe § Do&. Nye faid to them, * Go and fearch
the neceflary” ; witnefs replied, ¢ Go and fearch hell and dam-
nation, Major, and don’t come to trouble me again !"”’ —witnefs
told his fon to go with them in the fearch, and he did go; he

did this, becaufe he did not know but they might drop fome of
their papers.
Rev. James Moxss of Newburyport ---met with Maj, Goodridge
at the Lodge of Mafons in January laft, after the prifoners had
been arrefted-~.congratulated him on his difcoveries of the robbers
..alked about his feeing Taber--he told me he had not feen Taber
~--witnefs told him he bad heard he bad feen him in difguife--ima
mediately afterwards he followed wicnefs to another part of the
lodge and faid he withed to correct what he had faid aboutTaber,
that he 4ad feen Taber, but was under obligatiens not to {ay
any thing, and did net wifh to have any thing known till he had
made farther difcoveries, and was im hopes of getting more in-
formation, Witnefs thinks Goedridge faid he had been in difguile,

and feen Taber in Salem or Andover, but is not certaln but thar
4
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Goodridge mentioned he had Aeard of Taber in one of thofe towna
«-witnefs faid Goodridge at firft denied having ever feen him,
and witnefs was “furprifed at the prevarication.”

Miriam Smiru--[who lived at Pearfon’s].-.faw a fmall cloth
lying on the fnow, and called two Squires to help her pick it up,

Squire Nye and Squire Dorr-~there were fix pieces of gold
wrapped in a piece of cloth. ?

 Esanr. Prarson-—again---Levi pafled into Newburyport the
day of the robbery—next day pafled by on his return—never faw
him before his being brought along as a prifoner.

[ Prifoner’s Counfel, to thew Taber was in the limits of Bofton
gaol at the time of the robbery, reads an execution in favor of
Morrifon aod al. v. Reuben Taber, dated Oct. 31, 1816---and
the Returp, fhewing Taber was committed Dee. 12th, 1816;
alfo Bond for Debtor’s Liberties. ]

James Harrison-—gf Boflon.--fays he knows Reuben Taber--.

{aw him in gaol in the evening of 12th Dec. laft---next day he
got bail for liberfy of the yard---faw Tuberevery day-uill the

middle of Jannary---he caliéd at witnefs’ fiop in gaol limits every
day but one---noticed his not caliing then, afterwards talked of
it with Taber--wiine{s’ fhop is in Bath fireet..-he has often been
at Taber’s boufe-~-he has a wife and family in Bofton, wwe=Cro/s-
examined---fays Taber had no particular bufinefs at his {hop--

witnefs i1s a clock.-maker---the day Taber was abfent was after the
middle of January.

Sazan Ann Taser, (his daughter) faid her father was put in
gaol in Dec. the 12th, he had bee¢n a journey to Berwick; al-
ways knew when he was at home, for there was only a curtam
between their beds. "

£1124 Taseg, to the fame purpofe. -

Davip Lawrence; was at Mifs Martin’s in the evening of !9“1
D ; the boufe is next to Jofeph Jackman’s ; was there from
7 to g and never went out till the bell rung ; Jofeph Jackman
was there all the time and did not go out of the door.

Crofi-examined—fays he remembers it by the converfation
abaut the robbery a fhort time after ; that Joleph Jackman went
away the week after the robbery ; that he bad been talking about
going for fome months ; that Jackman told witnefs he was going

after property at New-York and Philadelphia, underfloed from

I
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him the property was money—that Jackman is a poor man...
has no property here....heard him name the perfon of whom he
was going to get fome money, but witnefs has forgot who it was ;
Jackman has not returned fince ; he has a family here very poor.

Migs Axx MarTin—lives at Newburyport——went home to
her heufe ¥he evening of the robbery with Mrs. Jackman about
half palt 7 ; found Jofeph Jackman there and David Lawrence ;
they ftaid aboutan hour, may bean hour and ahalf; Jackman
and Lawrence went away together; next morning Jackman
came in, aed himfelf told about the robbery.

Aaron Kzuniston---his fons live in his houfe with their fifter,
pretty much alone ; all the reoms and the cellar mentioned are
in witgefs’s part of the houfe ; thefe two fons never lay in thofe
rooms ; he had five or fix dollars in filver and paper, and fome
cents—this money was in his pantaloons in a pocket book—had
not feen his pocket book for a fortnight or 3 weeks—at Strat-
ham they afked witnefs to pay his dire& tax—afked them to wait
a little longer—they faid they ceuld not wait—they pretended to
be tax-gatherers—they alked how much gold witnefs had—he an-.
{wered none, and had ot feen any gold for 16, if for 24 years—
remembers when Levi went to Newburyport he let him have two
“ paper dollars ;” —=Zebulon teo was put in gaol for a debt of
five or fix dollars—didn’t know his {ons to have any money after
the robbery—-his {ons never went to the drawer fpoken of—had
1o accels to it—didn’t know his wife had the filver dollars,

Davio Crarman—[examined on Poire dire, faid he bad fub-
fcribed one dollar to help pay for the defence of the prifoners—
then fworn in chief.] He is a neighbour of the Keanniftons, and
thinks they live in the manner the father fays.

Carr. Durerr, of Lee, N. H.—alfo known them=thinks
they live fo—~not much ever in their houle. :

WiTNESSES FOR THE COMMONWEALTH, AGAIN.

Mary How,of Salem—the (aw Reuben Taber 23d Dec. laft,
at her houfe in Salem, and coaverfed with him. (Crofs exam.
ined ) —fays fhe knows the time by his wanting her little boy to
go an errand for him—he wanted the boy to go and fell fome
butter and paper for him—=this was jult three weeks after her fon
went to live with the tobacconift—he went (, live there on a

Monday, and it was a Monday Taber wanted her boy to go the
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errand—witnels told Taber the was not willing to take her boy
away from Mr, Micklefield, the tobacconift: |
Joun Page—of Danvers-—about three or four weeks after the
robbery a Mr. McKinftry heard Maj. Goodridge’s brother and
himfelf talking about the robbery—he faid he had frong fufp!-
cions of a certain perfon whom he had feen at Doughty’s Falls
in Berwick ; witnefs advifed Maj. Goodridge to talk wih
MKinftry ; about a week after that, witnefs went with Major
Goodridge to Bofton ; at Lynn they faw the fame perfon again,
and he advifed to keep a lookout for Reuben Taber. Witnels
was at Kenmiften’s houfe when the fearch was made ; was the
keeper of Laban; when the gold was found in the pocket book,
Laban’s countenance fell and tears farted into his eyes : witnels
was at Pearfon’s when the fearch was made with the witch-hazel :
went all round the houfe: but don’t recolle® that Goodridge
wanted the man to go to one part more than another. _
Levi Frencu—talked with Levi, when the houfe was fearch-
ed; Levi, when urged to tell, faid ¢ It would be time eneugh to
tell how the money came there when he was obliged to,” and
rather thinks he alfo faid * he could tell if he would.”
- Jacos Cosurn—of Newburyport, a Deputy Sheriff —was prefent .
at Pearfon’s, when the fearch was made for money ; went up
with Maj. Goodridge and French : before we went, Maj. Geod-
vidge faid, * Let us divelt ourfelves of all our money before we
go, fo that they need not fay we placed any there :** then each
cleared his own pocket: thinks it not poflible for Maj. Good-
ridge to have placed the gold in the place where it was found
without being feen by fomebody ; every thing was in plain fight ;
many perfons, 20 or 30, were there from Salifbury and the
neighbourhood watching us : there were 7 or 8 of s : there was
about a weck between the fearches; the firlt time we were there
Maj. Goodridge was behind the houfe ; the fecond time, Pear.
fon’s fon was there nearly all,as much as feven eighths of the time,
watching to fee that Maj. Goodridge did not drop any money :
went in fleighs both times.
- Joun Urrown—again—was prefent at the firlk, not at fecond

fearch at Pearfon’s : then a danghter of Pearfon and Dr. Carter
were there nearly all the time,
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Mzrs. Porry Avrven—knows Reuben Taber; faw him lafk
fall : don’t know when; but it was at the time fhe underftood
he was in the gaol limits,

Richmond Stodder—faw him in Dec. by the new bridge in Sa-
lem, one Sunday morning ; thinks it was before the robbery—
Griffin, of Salem, told witnefs Taber flept there fame night.

[ The Prisoners” Counsel renews the motion to admit Reuben Taber as
a Witness: the Court ordered this cause to be posiponed, till Tabee
shouild be tried ; whereupon the Solicitor General entered Nol. Pross.
on Indictment against Taber, and Taber was sworn as a Witness ]

Reveen Taser—(aid he was committed to gaol in Boflon in
Dec. 1a®t ; don’t recolleé the names of his creditors 3 when alked
if Leach & Morrifon, he faid yes: this is the firk time he ever

faw Maj. Goodridge, except at the examination at Newburyport;
he Raid in the limits till he was taken to Newburyport : no per.
fon ever came to him in difguife in Boften : never faw the Kene
niftons till to day, or through the gaol window ; when he went

to Berwick he called at Mrs. How’s in Salem, in Dec. to get her

fon to fell fome charts : her fan had fold fome before for him ;
ftopped only a few minutes.

Tromas Pearson (for Prifoners) was prefent when the fearch
was made with the rods :---faw Maj. Geodridge pafe over the
fpot where the money was found,--faw him coming from the
‘neceffary :--this was at the fecond fearch, when the papers were
found by Coburn ;.- witnefs faid he told the fame ftory when his
father was examined ; when the papers were found by Coburn,
they were immediately enclofed in a paper ; Goodridge was alone
when he came out of the neceflary ; witnels’ father had told him
to fellow and watch Goodridge ; while he was called away to
the barn to get fome hay, Goodridge went to the neceflary;
when witnefs returned, faw him coming out ; did not fee Good-
ridge when he went out, but fuppofes he went there from the
fore door ; had a full view of him when he paffed the place
where the money was found ; he could then have dropped the
money without witnefs’ noticing him, '

Epwars Dorg, Esq—on Saturday, z2d Feb. lalt, was requeft-
ed by Eb’r Pearfon, i jr. to go to the brndge——he faid fome money
was found there; took Squire Nye, & wentthere; many were affem-
bled there at the back of the houfe; there faw a piece of cloth,appa-
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rently 2 wrapper for money, in the fnow—poured hot water from
a teakettle on the fnow & melted it away—picked up the money
—there were 6 pieces—the woman that firlt faw it would not pick
it up till the magifirates came—ihe objected to having them
touched till fomebody came from Newburyport—witnefs kept
them till Mr. §. L. Knapp came—there wasaboat 3 inches of
old faow under the moncy-—lt was almoft ice—and about as
much new fnow above the money—=witnefs has the money now.
Jacos Conurx, again, (for Comm.)—he found the papers ia
the vault—=very difficult to take them up without defacing them
—~=two pieces were dirty, and frozen in the ice—-took up the floor
and found two more,which had blown under a part of the necef-
ary where they could not freeze—~-got a hoe and a hay-tucker to
take them up~-they had frof on them—the two firlt had appear- -
ance of having been there two or three nights—the laft as much
as one night, or they would not have been covered with froft.

Maj). Goobr1pes, again---fays he thinks the perfon now here,
called Taber, is the fame perfon he talked with in Boftun---there

aflced him if Lis name was Zeber, and he anfwered, yes—thinks he
ts the fame—he was then drefled in a light furtout.

Ww. Jones, of Bolton—about the laft of January was prefent
when Maj. Geodridge converfed with a man,who was underflood
to be Taber :~Maj. Goodridge previoufly informed witnefs he
had feen Taber, and that Taber had agreed to meet him again :
witnefs weat with Maj. Goodridge to find Taber ;—Maj. Good-
ridge was in difguife ;---Capt, Silfbee lent him the clothes,—they
were failors’ clothes :—Capt. Silfbee went with us ;~—Major
Goodridge fepped afide, and afked us to wait for him till he re-
turned :—he was gone perhaps three quarters of an hour,--wit-
nels then faw the man he called 7'aber,~<he was dreffed in a light
furtout,~~[ looks at Taber jn Court and fays] he thinks from the
fize of Taber that is he, cannot fay poktively :—that appears
like the countenance [looking in I"s face] be faw,—thinks it to
be the man according to the beft of his judgment,~~it was dark
at the time :--after Maj. Goodridge left Taber [aw him minute
down the names of perfons, of whom he f{aid Taber had told
him ;---the place where he faw Goodridge talking with the man
wae between the head of the Fih Market agd Anu-Street.
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Maj. GooDRIDGE, ¢alled by Prifeners’ Counfel :~faid he Had
fulpicions of the Kenniftons, as Mr. Caldwell had told him
they were at his houfe the day of the robbery, but faid they
were miferable fellows and had net pluck enough to rob: bus
he never had thought he had knowledge emough of -any perfons
to profecute them till Taber gave him information. -

[Sel. Gen. soves to introduce evidence as to May. Goodridge’s gen«
eral charalter :—the Prifoners® Cousfel objecls :—The Court faid
it was certainly propery after be had been eharged with the grofeft
Jraud.]

Solicitor Gen. then called—

Reve Mr. Cocuran—refides at Cambridge now ;—Maj.
Goodridge was born near witnefs’ native plaee : knew him till
he was 18 years old : witnefs has fince lived near Camden : he
had felt always an interelt for Maj. Goodridge, as there had been
an intimacy between their families—his general charaéter, as far
as was in his knowledge, ftands as fair as any-—never knew one
more fair ;: --have often made inquiries about him :—he formerly
kept fchool.

Zavock FrencH, of Boflan—has known him about 6 years ;e
he hires a Rore at Bangor of witnels :—has had conftant com-
mercial intercourfe with him :—his chara&er is remarkably cor-
re@ and good--~this he has heard at Bangor and from his
acquaintance.

Joun Parxer, of Bangor—Maj. Goodridge went there in
1812 j=——our flores are near together:—his character is fair—
and witnefs never heard any thing againft him in his life. -

Mr. Garras®, of Bangor—Mr. Goodridge has refided in
witnels’ family—his chara&er is very fair—he is a man of
credit and bufinefs there. :

STePHEN Kimsarr—livesat Bangor—his charaélcr is very
fair—is in good credit and bufinefs.

Doct. Geo. Oscoop jof Danvers—Afrft knew Mr. Goodridge
in 1806, In Danvers---they boarded together in the fame family
about fix months---afterward, lived near him two years...his

charaéer was as goad as any man‘s he had known.
[Major Gooprince was asked by the Prisoner’s Counsel, abogt the
ketter put in Dover Post Office :—he answered, it was directed to Mr.

Chisley, at Rﬂhﬁtcr ¢ the Court said he was not obliged to tell the
gontents. ]
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Wu. Gave—was at Newbury, Dec. 19th, ia the evening, go-
ing ealtward —pafled the bridge about 8 o’clock, going to Amef-
bury : juft by the hay-fcales he met § men, loitering, not at all
in 2 hurry : two fhort, and one tall man—the tall one fpoke—
he {eemed to be a kind of a blackguarding charader—couldn’t
underftand what he faid—"twas about 8 o’clock when he faw

them—next morning he {poke of it—he had never been called to
teftify before. | |

Miss Tasens—both called again—{ay their father wore a very
dark {artout laft winter-—~and that he has not had a /ight one for
three years. |

James Harrison, again—never faw Taber wear a light or any
{urtout. |

SterneN Howarp, of Newburyport—=the morning after the
robbery, in the roem at Pearfon’s, he faw the glove and piltol,
and examined them—the piftol was a large horfe piltol, abeut a
nine inch barrel ; the lock of the piltol was bloody ; the par was
not dirty, nor the muzz!le, as if they had been Kred recently ; he
pul his ﬁr}ger into the barve! = his Augtlr Was not foiled ; aiked
ior a white rag; then rammed down a picce of india Cotton
the barrel ; it had no f{oil on it, there was only a little dry dulk
atthe bottom, a little pulverized powder---he then gave his
opinion, and now thinks, the piftol could not have been fired the
night before.

[The Exammatmn of Wltncsses closed at 10 o’clock, A. M. Friday,
The argumant of Mr. Webster for the prisoners, of the Solicitor General
for the Commonwealth, and the charge of the Judge, were closed about
§ o’clock, P. M. when the Jury retired. On Saturday morning, at the
opening of the Court, they returned thﬁu' verdiet, Not GurrLry; and
the Prisoners were discharged.)



